
SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Thursday, 15 April 2021 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

PLEASE NOTE that any member of the press and 
public may view the proceedings at this virtual 

meeting via this weblink  
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC7DDSVoAIgTn

wgp0Ku8iFLQ 
 

 

 

 
 
 

CPH Climate Change, Planning & 
Housing Decision Session  

 

Public Document Pack



Disclosing Pecuniary Interests - What Must You Do? 

 

 (a) You must complete a declaration of your disclosable pecuniary interests, including those of 
your spouse/civil partner (or someone with whom you are living as such) and send it to the 
Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your election or appointment to the Council. 

(b)  When you attend a meeting of the Council, Cabinet, Scrutiny Board, Committee, Sub-
Committee or Joint Committee etc, and a matter arises in which you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest, unless you have been granted a dispensation, you must: 

 Declare the interest if you have not already registered it 

 Not participate in any discussion or vote 

 Leave the meeting room until the matter has been dealt with 

 Give written notice of any unregistered interest to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of 
the meeting 

(c) If you are the Leader or a Cabinet Portfolio Holder you may not exercise any of your 
delegated powers as a single member in relation to a matter in which you have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or take any other step except to give written notice of any unregistered interest 
to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your becoming aware of the interest, or arrange for 
another person or body to deal with the matter. 

 

Disclosable Interest 

 

Description 

Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain by you 
or your partner. 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the Council) 
made or provided within 12 months of your declaration of interests in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election 
expenses. 

Contracts Any contract between you or your partner (or a firm or body corporate in which you or 
your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities of which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest)) and the Council  
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Council and which gives you 
or your partner a right to occupy the land or receive income. 

Licences Any licence held by you or your partner (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the Council for a month or longer. 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge)— 
(a) the landlord is the Council; and 
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial interest i.e. a firm or 
body corporate in which you or your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities 
of which you or your partner has a beneficial interest. 

Securities Any beneficial interest held by you or your partner in securities of a body where— 
 
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the 
Council; and 
(b) either— 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or 
 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
class. 

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a 
collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets 
Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a 
building society. 



 
  

SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN  
BOROUGH COUNCIL 



 
To: 
Councillors A Mackiewicz, M McLoughlin 
and J Fairburn 
 

 
NICK PAGE 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
Council House, Manor Square 
Solihull, West Midlands. B91 3QB 
Tel. 0121-704 6000  
 
Paul Rogers 
Tel: 0121 704 6550 
Email: paul.rogers@solihull.gov.uk 
 
Date: Thursday, 8th April 2021  
 

 
CPH CLIMATE CHANGE, PLANNING & HOUSING DECISION SESSION  

 
Thursday 15 April 2021 

 
AGENDA 

 

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY OR CONFLICTS OF INTEREST  
 

3.  QUESTIONS AND DEPUTATIONS  
 

4.  APPLICATION FOR THE DESIGNATION OF A NEIGHBOURHOOD AREA BY 
BICKENHILL AND MARSTON GREEN PARISH COUNCIL (Pages 5 - 14) 
 

To consider the application made by Bickenhill and Marston Green Parish 
Council and agree to designate Bickenhill village as a separate Neighbourhood 
Area. 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Meeting date: 15th April 2021 

 

Report to: Cabinet Member Climate Change, 
Planning and Housing 

Subject/report 
title: 

Application for the designation of a Neighbourhood Area by Bickenhill 
& Marston Green Parish Council 

Report from: Assistant Director – Growth and Development 

Report 
author/lead 
contact officer: 

Ellie Dukes– eleanor.dukes@solihull.gov.uk  

 

 
Wards affected:  

☐ All Wards | ☒ Bickenhill | ☐ Blythe | ☐ Castle Bromwich | ☐ Chelmsley Wood | 

☐ Dorridge/Hockley Heath | ☐ Elmdon | ☐ Kingshurst/Fordbridge | ☐ Knowle | 

☐ Lyndon | ☐ Meriden | ☐ Olton | ☐ Shirley East | ☐ Shirley South | 

☐ Shirley West | ☐ Silhill | ☐ Smith’s Wood | ☐ St Alphege 

Public/private 
report: 

Public 

Exempt by virtue 
of paragraph: 

      

 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

1.1 To consider the application made by Bickenhill & Marston Green Parish Council and 
agree to designate Bickenhill Village as a Neighbourhood Area.  

2. Decision(s) recommended 

2.1 To designate the Neighbourhood Area as submitted by Bickenhill & Marston Green 
Parish Council, attached as Appendix A to this report. 

3. Background 

3.1 Neighbourhood Planning was introduced by the Localism Act in 2011. It enables 
Parish / Town Councils and local communities to prepare Neighbourhood 
Development Plans (NDP), Neighbourhood Development Orders (NDO) and 
Community Right to Build Orders (CRBO) which can shape development and growth 
in their local area. 

3.2 A NDP is a community led plan which sets out policies to guide the future use and 
development of land within a specified Neighbourhood Area. For areas that are 
parished, Parish Council’s take responsibility for undertaking them.  

3.3 Members will be aware that a Neighbourhood Development Plan (NDP) is a 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4

mailto:eleanor.dukes@solihull.gov.uk


 

 
 

community led plan which sets out policies to guide the future use and development of 
land within a specified Neighbourhood Area. The scope and content of plans will be 
defined by local communities; however, they must meet certain ‘basic conditions’. In 
particular, plans must contribute to the achievement of sustainable development and 
be in general conformity with the strategic policies of the Development Plan for the 
area. 

4. The Bickenhill & Marston Green Parish Council Application 

Context 

4.1 On the 16th December 2020, Bickenhill & Marston Green Parish Council submitted an 
application to Solihull Council to designate a portion of the parish of Bickenhill & 
Marston Green. This area will be referred to as ‘Bickenhill Village’ throughout this 
report. The application is the first formal stage in the process of the Parish Council 
preparing a NDP for Bickenhill village. Appendix A provides the full application as 
received.  

4.2 Bickenhill & Marston Green Parish Council is the ‘relevant body’ as defined by the Act 
to prepare a NDP for the proposed area. The Parish Council considers the area is 
appropriate for designation for the following reasons: 

(a) The Bickenhill Neighbourhood Plan is being developed to help deliver the local 
community’s ambitions and needs for the plan period 2020 to 2028. 

(b) The designation of Bickenhill Village only will aim to mitigate the impact of 
specific issues faced by the settlement. These include the proximity to 
Birmingham Airport, the planned Junction 5A of the M42, the A45 which 
separates the Marston Green and Bickenhill and the surrounding industrial 
nature of the area.  

(c) To protect and preserve the distinctive open character of the area, the green 
belt, and to improve the long-term viability of the village as a desirable place to 
live. 

4.3 In accordance with The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012, the 
application was published for 6 weeks of public consultation between 28th January 
2021 and 11th March 2021. A copy of the application was available to view on the 
‘latest news’ and the ‘neighbourhood planning’ web pages of the Council’s website. It 
was also publicised on the Council’s facebook page and twitter feed.   

4.4 Parish Councils adjacent the proposed Neighbourhood Area have been notified of the 
application. The Bickenhill & Marston Green Parish Council also made use of their 
local connections within the community to raise awareness of the application to 
designate. The application was available to view locally and posters were also 
displayed around the area to raise awareness. 

4.5 1 consultation response has been received which supports designation of the 
Neighbourhood Area. 

 

Page 6



 

 
 

Assessment 

4.6 In determining an application for a Neighbourhood Area, Section 61G(5) of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 requires the local planning authority to consider 
whether the proposed area is appropriate for designation. Local planning authorities 
must have regard to: 

(a) the desirability of designating the whole area of a parish council as a 
Neighbourhood Area, and 

(b) the desirability of maintaining the existing boundaries of areas already 
designated as neighbourhood areas  

4.7 A further consideration is whether the area concerned should be designated as a 
business area. 

4.8 In accordance with the Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012, the 
application includes: (a) a map which identifies the area to which the application 
relates; (b) a statement explaining why the area is considered appropriate to be 
designated; and (c) a statement that the organisation or body making the area 
application is a relevant body. The application is therefore compliant with the 
regulations in this regard. 

5. What options have been considered and what is the evidence telling us about 
them? 

5.1 In circumstances where the whole Parish area is not being designated, the Council 
can refuse an application if it considers the area not appropriate. This option could 
include the requirement for the Parish Council to apply for a neighbourhood area that 
covers the whole parish.  

5.2 In circumstances such as those identified by the Parish Council, it may be appropriate 
to designate a proportion of the Parish, if sufficient reasoning is supplied to support an 
alternative designation.  

6. Reasons for recommending preferred option 

6.1 Government guidance states that the Local Planning Authority should aim to 
designate the area applied for unless there are clear planning reasons for designating 
an alternative area. The Local Planning Authority can modify the boundary only where 
there are clear planning reasons to do so.  

6.2 In this case, the physical separation and distance between Marston Green village and 
Bickenhill village is noteworthy. This physical separation is also exacerbated by the 
presence of the A45 between both villages. As a result of those physical attributes, the 
villages are distinctly different from one another and face different issues. Therefore, 
the Neighbourhood Area application is valid, none of the area applied for has been 
previously designated as a Neighbourhood Area and it would not affect the other 
designated Neighbourhood Areas in the Borough. The area is not wholly or 
predominantly business in nature such that it should be designated as business area. 

Page 7



 

 
 

7. Next Steps 

7.1 The next stage in the process would be for the Bickenhill & Marston Green Parish 
Council to prepare and consult on its pre-submission draft neighbourhood plan, before 
formally submitting it to Solihull Council for independent examination. 

8. Implications and Considerations 

8.1 State how the proposals in this report contribute to the priorities in the Council Plan: 

Priority: Contribution: 

Economy: 

1. Revitalising our towns and local 
centres. 

2. UK Central (UKC) and maximising the 
opportunities of HS2. 

3. Increase the supply of housing, 
especially affordable and social 
housing. 

Neighbourhood Planning can aid in defining 
and developing the Council’s approach to 
development of and access to affordable 
and sustainable housing.  

Environment: 

4. Enhance Solihull’s natural environment. 
5. Improve Solihull’s air quality. 
6. Reduce Solihull’s net carbon emissions. 

Encourages working in partnership for an 
enhanced, well connected natural 
environment. 

People and Communities: 

7. Take action to improve life chances in 
our most disadvantaged communities. 

8. Enable communities to thrive. 
9. Sustainable, quality, affordable 

provision for adults & children with 
complex needs. 

The process of neighbourhood planning can 
develop stronger, more connected, 
resourceful communities finding solutions to 
local problems. 

8.2 Consultation and Scrutiny: 

8.2.1 To date, there have been no scrutiny issues with regard to the designation of a 
Neighbourhood Area for Bickenhill Village.  

8.3 Financial implications: 

8.3.1 To support the role of local authorities in the Neighbourhood Planning process, 
Government funding is available through the Neighbourhood Planning Grant. Further 
details of the funding scheme are available here. 

8.3.2 In February 2017 the Government provided an update on financial support for local 
planning authorities (LPAs) to fulfil their duty to support Neighbourhood Planning in 
2017/2018. From April 2017 LPAs can claim £5000 for the first 5 designated 
Neighbourhood Areas only. As 8 Neighbourhood Areas have been designated in 

Page 8

https://www.solihull.gov.uk/About-the-Council/The-Council-plan
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/894415/200622_2020-21_Chief_Planners_Letter_NP_grant.pdf


 

 
 

Solihull, the Council would not be eligible to claim financial support for any subsequent 
designations. 

8.3.3 The staff time associated with providing support to areas undertaking neighbourhood 
planning will therefore be funded through the existing Policy and Engagement budget. 
The Council is however required to organise and pay for the independent examination 
of a Neighbourhood Plan and any subsequent referendum. However, £20,000 can be 
claimed once a date has been set for a referendum following a successful 
examination. 

8.4 Legal implications: 

8.4.1 The Council has a legal obligation to assist Parish / Town Councils and 
Neighbourhood Forums with the process of preparing NDPs, if requests come 
forward. Although the regulations do not require local planning authorities to give 
financial assistance to such groups, the Council is required to undertake consultations 
at the relevant stage in the Neighbourhood Planning process, as well as organise and 
pay for the independent examination of a plan, and the referendum. 

8.5 Risk implications: 

8.5.1 No risk implications are identified. 

8.6 Equality implications: 

8.6.1 Legislation requires that a neighbourhood forum must be sufficiently representative of 
the neighbourhood area for which it is authorised to act. 

9. List of appendices referred to 

9.1 Appendix A – Bickenhill Village Neighbourhood Area application 

10. Background papers used to compile this report 

10.1 None 

11. List of other relevant documents 

11.1 None 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Application for a Neighbourhood Area
Prepared by Bickenhill and Marston Green Parish Council:

Parish Council Office, Recreation Ground, Bickenhill Road, Marston Green B37 7ER.

Tel. 0121 779 4040, Email clerk@bmgpc.org

This application for the designation of Bickenhill Village as a Neighbourhood Area includes: 

1: A map defining the area of the application.

2: Background to the application

3: Aims of the process, and statement explaining why this area is considered appropriate to 
be designated as a Neighbourhood Area.

4: Management and funding of the process 

5: A statement that the body making the area application is a relevant body for the 
purposes of 61G of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act (see 3 below). 

Page 11

tel:01217794040
mailto:clerk@bmgpc.org


1: A map defining the area of the application.

2: Background to the application

Situated to the north of Solihull and with roots in the 11th century, Bickenhill and Marston 
Green Parish is one of the oldest in the country and serves the villages of Bickenhill and 
Marston Green. Bickenhill sits to the south of the parish, and is a small but important rural 
hamlet with a population of around 150 people. The village itself is of historical significance, 
dating back to the 11th century, with a settlement around the church, built in 1140 and a 
conservation area at its heart. Marston Green, 3 miles from Bickenhill is a much larger, 
thriving village.  Marston Green is separated from Bickenhill by a large industrialised area, 
comprising Birmingham International Airport and Train Station, the N.E.C, several business 
parks, one of the main arterial roads into Birmingham, the A45 Coventry and the M42.

The past several years have brought significant challenges to Bickenhill village: the 
expansion of Birmingham Airport and runway extension in 2014 have increased noise and 
air pollution; the planned new junction 5a of M42 and works at junction 6 will create a 
bypass on the village border, and the granting of some recent developments in and around 
the village has changed the nature of the area. 

3: Aims of the process, and statement explaining why this area is considered appropriate 
to be designated as a Neighbourhood Area.

The Bickenhill Neighbourhood Plan is being developed to help deliver the local community’s 
ambitions for the plan period 2020 to 2028 in line with the SLP. 

The Parish Council sees a clear opportunity to protect Bickenhill from the main challenges it 
faces, but also to help create a plan for the future of the village. It has therefore resolved to 

Page 12



initiate a Neighbourhood Development Plan, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011, for 
Bickenhill village. The Neighbourhood Area, subject to approval by SMBC, will be the area 
covered by Bickenhill Village as shown in the attached map, and not the whole parish.

The Parish Council considers that the issues facing Bickenhill are specific to the village, and 
generally of a magnitude that can threaten the long-term sustainability of such a small, but 
important settlement. In part this is because Bickenhill and Marston Green are located 3 
miles apart, but also because the make-up of each area is different in terms of environment 
and population. As a result, the Parish Council considers it appropriate to designate only 
Bickenhill Village, and not the balance of the Parish in the proposed area. The Parish Council 
considers Bickenhill Village to include Cloc Lane and The Haven caravan site as both areas 
are very near to each other and face the same issues. 

Specifically, the primary aims of the plan are to protect and preserve the distinctive open 
character of the area and retain the green belt, and to improve the long-term viability of the
village as a desirable place to live.

Issues will be identified and the plan prepared in consultation with residents and businesses 
within the parish, adjacent Parish Councils, and with Solihull Metropolitan Borough Council 
(SMBC) as the local planning authority. 

4: Management and funding of the process

The development of a Bickenhill Neighbourhood Plan was first proposed by the Parish 
Council who will play a significant role in the process. The production of a plan will be 
developed through a two-tier structure led by a Steering Group with sub-groups looking at 
specific areas of the plan. The number and composition of sub-groups will reflect the 
expertise and local knowledge of the local community and local stakeholders. 

Once the Neighbourhood Area is approved by SMBC the Parish Council will be able to apply 
for a grant from the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) 
delivered via Locality. Additionally, direct funding to pay for professional support is also 
available separately from MHCLG. 

SMBC will also receive funding from MHCLG to cover officer time and legislative duties 
associated with Neighbourhood Planning, including holding an examination and arranging a 
referendum. 

5: A statement explaining why this area is considered appropriate to be designated as a 
Neighbourhood Area.

In accordance with section 61G of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, the body 
making the application to designate Bickenhill Village as a Neighbourhood Area is Bickenhill 
and Marston Green Parish Council Parish Council, a parish council established in pursuance 
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Application for the designation of a Neighbourhood Area by Bickenhill and Marston Green Parish Council
	Appendix A.pdf


